%

\ s
N CITY OF

YO R K Licence

COUNCIL

Ve

Licensing/Gambling Hearing

To: Councillors Kent, Melly and Ravilious
Date: Wednesday, 19 July 2023
Time: 10.00 am
Venue: Remote Meeting
AGENDA
1. Chair

To elect a Member to act as Chair of the meeting.
2. Introductions
3. Declarations of Interest

At this point in the meeting, Members and co-opted members are
asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary interest, or other
registerable interest, they might have in respect of business on this
agenda, if they have not already done so in advance on the Register of
Interests. The disclosure must include the nature of the interest.

An interest must also be disclosed in the meeting when it becomes
apparent to the member during the meeting.

[Please see attached sheet for further guidance for Members].

4. Exclusion of Press and Public

To consider excluding the Press and Public during the sub-committee’s
deliberations and decision-making at the end of the hearing, on the
grounds that the public interest in excluding the public outweighs the

public interest in that part of the meeting taking place in public, under
Regulation 14 of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005.

www.york.gov.uk



5.  Minutes

To approve and sign the minutes of the Licensing Hearings held on 12
June 2023 and 22 June 2023.

6. The Determination of a Section 18(3)(a) Application by Sara
Winslow and Robert Darbyshire for a Premises Licence
Section 18(3)(a) Application in respect of 75 Balmoral
Terrace, York, YO23 1HR (CYC-073025)

Democratic Services Officer:
Name: Fiona Young
Contact Details:
e Telephone — (01904) 552030
e Email - fiona.young@york.gov.uk

For more information about any of the following, please contact the
Democratic Services officer responsible for servicing this meeting:
Business of the meeting

Any special arrangements

Copies of reports and

For receiving reports in other formats.

Contact details are set out above.

This information can be provided in your own language.
HEMBASMESIRMEREIER (cantonese)
W3 B AT ISR ST Rl (TS 21T | (Bengali)

Ta informacja moze by¢ dostarczona w twoim

wiasnym jezyku. (Polisn)

Bu bilgiyi kendi dilinizde almaniz miimkiindiir. (Turkish)
J”d'c b D G =Tl (Urdu)
T (01904) 551550



mailto:fiona.young@york.gov.uk

Page 1 Agenda Annex

LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB — COMMITTEES
PROCEDURE FOR REMOTE LICENSING HEARINGS

Introduction

1. During the coronavirus pandemic emergency period it will be
necessary for licensing hearings to be dealt with remotely. This
procedure sets out how City of York Council will deal with such
hearings. This procedure must be considered in conjunction with the
Council’s Delivery of Remote Meetings document which sets out how
all meetings, including licensing hearings will be held in York.

2. The procedure adopted at a licensing hearing is at the discretion of
the Sub-Committee but will normally follow the pattern outlined
below:

3. The Council's hearings procedure is based on regulations made by
the Secretary of State under the Licensing Act 2003. The procedure
Is intended as a general framework to ensure natural justice and a
fair hearing. The Sub-Committee has a duty to view all evidence
presented before them impartially. The Sub-Committee is not bound
by the formal rules of evidence. Nevertheless, Members must carry
out their duty placing what weight they feel is appropriate given the
nature of the evidence and the manner in which it was obtained, and
communicated.

4. The Council will provide a record of the hearing in a permanent and
intelligible form and keep it for 6 years from the date of determination
or disposal of any Appeal. The Hearing will be recorded and the
recording placed on the Council’s website.

Preparation for the Remote Licensing Hearing

5. The Sub-Committee will use the video-conferencing platform when
the hearing is in public session. Clear instructions will be provided to
participants on how to join the remote hearing. The Sub-Committee
may exclude the public from all or part of a hearing if it considers it is
in the public interest to do so. Should any part of the hearing need to
be held in private session, a separate private online meeting will be
convened by the Sub-Committee. This video-conferencing platform
will also be used for decision making in private. All paperwork
relevant to the hearing will be published online on the Council’s



Page 2

website, 5 working days before the remote hearing. The documents
will be produced in PDF format and will be paginated to permit ease
of reference during the remote hearing. Name and address details
of those making representations will be made public. Telephone
numbers, email addresses and signatures will be omitted.

6. 5 working days before the remote hearing is due to take place, the
Council will contact the parties with a list of issues they would like
any party to specifically address them on or clarify at the hearing.

7. Ifin light of the Council’s list of issues any party wishes to produce
any further documentary evidence they should submit this to the
Council by email three working days before the hearing.

8. Any documentary evidence that is not submitted to the Council by
email three working days before the hearing will not be admitted
without the agreement of all parties. If it is essential to a party’s case
that the material be admitted, then the Sub-Committee will consider
adjourning the remote hearing to allow all parties a fair opportunity to
consider it.

9. Should any party wish to rely on any points of law, specific
references in the s.182 Guidance, specific references in the
Council’s Policy or any other external resources, these should be set
down in an electronic document and submitted to the Council by
email three working days before the hearing.

The Remote Licensing Hearing

10. The Applicant is permitted to speak at the remote hearing (see
below). Ward Councillors, responsible Authorities and Representors
are only permitted to speak if they have made written submissions
during the consultation period. Any party to a hearing may be
assisted or represented by any person, legally or otherwise.

11. All parties will be given a fair hearing and each party will have the
same amount of time in which to address the Sub-Committee and
question each other. Each party will have 15 minutes to address the
Sub-Committee and call any witnesses and 5 minutes for questions.



Page 3

12. However, where there are groups of individuals with a common
interest, for example local residents making similar representations
either for or against an application, consideration should be given to
nominating a spokesperson. Otherwise the Sub-Committee may
iImpose a time limit for such representations where there is pressure
on the Sub-Committee to hear numerous applications in a short
period of time or for any other valid reason.

13. If any Representors fail to attend the hearing, the Sub-Committee will
normally proceed but will consider their written representation. In
considering written evidence in the absence of a Representor,
appropriate weight will be attached, given that the person cannot be
guestioned by Members.

14. The Sub-Committee is required to disregard any information
given or evidence produced by a party or witness which is not
relevant to the application, representations, or notice, and the
promotion of the licensing objectives. Duplication should be
avoided. Comments must be confined to those points already made,
although the parties may expand on their written submissions. The
Sub-Committee will have read and familiarised themselves with all
the written submissions and the issues prior to the hearing, and
therefore do not require the points to be made at length.

15. A Representor may not introduce any new ground or objection not
referred to in their written submission. Additional representations
which do not amount to an amplification of the original representation
will not be considered by the Sub-Committee.

16. Any person behaving in a disruptive manner will be asked to leave
the hearing. However, if this occurs, that person will be entitled to
submit in writing any information they would have been entitled to
give orally.

ORDER OF PROCEEDINGS AT THE REMOTE HEARING

Chair’s introduction and opening comments

17. The Chair will introduce the Sub-Committee Members and Officers
and welcome the Applicant and Representors (or their



18.

19.

Page 4

representatives), and establish the identity of all who will be taking
part.

The Chair will outline the procedure to be followed.

The Chair will proceed with the order of business on the agenda.

Licensing Manager

20.

When the agenda item relating to the application is reached, the
Chair will invite the Licensing Officer to present the application. The
Chair will invite all present, one by one, to ask the Licensing Officer
questions if they wish, to clarify any points raised in the report.

The Application

21.

22.

The Applicant (and/or their representative) will address the Sub-
Committee and present information in support of the application and
may call any witnesses to support the application, one witness at a
time [maximum 15 minutes].

The Chair will invite the Representors to ask questions of the
Applicant in the following order [maximum 5 minutes each party]:

Police;

Other Responsible Authorities;
Ward Councillors;

Members of the Sub-Committee;
The Sub-Committee’s legal adviser.

The Representations

23.

The Chair will invite the Representors and/or their representative in
the following order to address the Members of the Sub-Committee
and call any witnesses in support of their representation [maximum
15 minutes each party]:

Police
Other Responsible Authorities



Page 5

Ward Councillors
Public representation

24. The Chair will invite the Applicant to ask questions of each

25.

Representor and/or their witnesses after each presentation
[maximum 5 minutes per Representor]. The Chair will invite the
Committee Members to ask questions of each Representor (or their
representative) and/or their withesses after each presentation.

Where there are groups of individuals with a common interest, for
example local residents, presentation through an appointed
spokesperson is preferred but not mandated.

Summaries

26. The Chair will invite the Representors (or their representative) in the

27.

28.

following order to summarise their case [maximum 5 minutes each
party]

Police

Other Responsible Authorities
Ward Councillors

Local residents

The Chair will invite the Applicant (or their representative) to
summarise their case [maximum 5 minutes].

The Chair will provide the Sub-Committee with a final opportunity to
seek clarification from any of the parties on any points raised, or
seek advice from the Licensing Officer on policy, or from the Legal
Advisor on law and jurisdiction.

Determination

29. The Sub-Committee will withdraw to consider their decision with the

Legal Adviser and the Democratic Services Officer in a separate
private on line meeting. These officers will not comment on the
merits of the application, but will be present to provide advice on
legal and procedural points and to record the decision.



Page 6

30. If the decision is made following the conclusion of the hearing,
a notice of the decision will be published online as soon as possible
and those who were present at the hearing will be informed by email.
This decision will then be communicated in full in writing, including
reasons for the decision, to the Applicant and all Representors
(whether in attendance or not) usually within 5 working days of the
hearing. There can be no further questions or statements.

31. If the Sub-Committee does not make a decision on the day of the
hearing, the decision will be made within 5 working days beginning
with the day or the last day on which the hearing was held. The
Democratic Services Officer will inform the parties that they are no
longer required and the decision will be communicated in writing to
the Applicant and Representors within 5 working days of the decision
being made.

The natification will include information about the rights of appeal
against the determination made.



(1)

Page 7

Declarations of Interest — guidance for Members

Members must consider their interests, and act according to the

following:

Type of Interest

You must

Interests

Disclosable Pecuniary

Disclose the interest, not participate
in the discussion or vote, and leave
the meeting unless you have a
dispensation.

Other Registrable
Interests (Directly
Related)

OR

Non-Registrable
Interests (Directly
Related)

Disclose the interest; speak on the
item only if the public are also
allowed to speak, but otherwise not
participate in the discussion or vote,
and leave the meeting unless you
have a dispensation.

Other Registrable
Interests (Affects)
OR

Non-Registrable
Interests (Affects)

Disclose the interest; remain in the
meeting, participate and vote unless
the matter affects the financial
interest or well-being:

(a) to a greater extent than it affects
the financial interest or well-being of
a majority of inhabitants of the
affected ward; and

(b) a reasonable member of the
public knowing all the facts would
believe that it would affect your view
of the wider public interest.

In which case, speak on the item
only if the public are also allowed to
speak, but otherwise do not
participate in the discussion or vote,
and leave the meeting unless you
have a dispensation.

Agenda Iltem 3

(2) Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to the Member concerned or
their spouse/partner.

(3) Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months must
not vote in decisions on, or which might affect, budget calculations,



Page 8

and must disclose at the meeting that this restriction applies to
them. A failure to comply with these requirements is a criminal
offence under section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act
1992.



City of York Council

Page 9 Agenda ltem 5

Committee Minutes

Meeting
Date

Present

Licensing/Gambling Hearing
12 June 2023

Councillors Cuthbertson, Hook and Melly

Chair
Resolved: That ClIr Melly be elected to chair the hearing.
Introductions

The Chair introduced the Sub-Committee Members, the
Licensing Manager, the Legal Adviser and the Solicitor
shadowing her, and the Democratic Services officer and the
Democracy Officer shadowing her. The Applicant’s solicitor
introduced himself and those accompanying him — Nicholas
Bradley (Director of New Holgate Ltd.), Daisy Drydal-Mortimer
(Designated Premises Supervisor) and Gessica Giacolome
(Front-of-house Manager). Counsel for the Representors
introduced himself, noting that he was instructed by Pippa Allen
and a number of other Representors. Tom Mitchell,
Representor, introduced himself.

Declarations of Interest

Members were invited to declare at this point in the meeting any
disclosable pecuniary interest or other registerable interest they
might have in respect of business on the agenda, if they had not
already done so in advance on the Register of Interests.

No interests were declared, but for the sake of transparency Clir
Cuthbertson indicated that he had visited both of the schools
referred to in the case papers in connection with Council
activities.

Exclusion of Press and Public

Resolved: That the press and public be excluded from the
meeting during the sub-committee’s deliberations
and decision-making at the end of the hearing, on
the grounds that the public interest in excluding the
public outweighs the public interest in that part of the



Page 10

meeting taking place in public, under Regulation 14
of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations
2005.

Minutes

Resolved: That the minutes of the Licensing Hearing held on
22 December 2022 be approved as a correct record,
to be signed by the Chair at a later date, subject to
the reference to ‘licensing committee’ in ‘Option 2’ at
the end of paragraph 6 of Minute 52 being corrected
to ‘sub-committee’.

The Determination of a Section 18(3) (a) Application by New
Holgate Limited for a Premises Licence in respect of
Holgate Bridge Hotel, 106 - 108 Holgate Road, York, YO24
4BB (CYC-072631)

Members considered an application by New Holgate Limited for
a premises licence in respect of Holgate Bridge Hotel, 106-108
Holgate Road, York YO24 4BB.

In considering the application and the representations made, the
Sub-Committee concluded that the following licensing objectives
were relevant to this Hearing:

1. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder
2. The Prevention of Public Nuisance
3. The Protection of Children from Harm

In coming to their decision, the Sub-Committee took into
consideration all the evidence and submissions that were
presented, and determined their relevance to the issues raised
and the above licensing objectives, including:

1.  The application form.
2.  The papers before it.

3. The Licensing Manager’s report and her comments at the
Hearing.

The Licensing Manager outlined the report and the
annexes, noting that the premises were not in the
Cumulative Impact Area and confirming that the Applicant
had carried out the consultation process correctly.



Page 11

She further noted that an additional condition had been
agreed with Public Protection (Annex 3) and that there
were no representations from Responsible Authorities.
She drew attention to the representations at Annex 5, and
the additional information from the Applicant and
Representors published in the Agenda Supplement.
Finally, she advised the sub-committee of the options
open to them in determining the application.

In response to questions from the sub-committee, the
Licensing Manager confirmed that:
e Public notices in respect of the application had been
correctly formatted and placed
e The Licensing Act did not automatically allow 24-
hour service of alcohol to hotel guests
o A further application would be needed if the
Applicant wished to extend the licensed area to
other premises.

The representations made by James Staton, Solicitor, on
behalf of the Applicant.

Mr Staton noted that the question raised about extending
the premises was academic, as the Applicant had no
plans to purchase other properties.

He stated that the Applicant was looking to establish a
new boutique hotel on the site of an existing unlicensed
hotel. The plan was to upgrade the premises and offer a
high-quality experience to hotel residents and diners. The
building, which was Grade Il listed, was being refurbished.
The hotel would have 12 bedrooms, a small bar (12
covers), a modest-sized restaurant and an outdoor dining
area. Service of alcohol would be available to hotel
residents throughout the day, but early in the day it would
be served to non-residents only with a meal, for example a
wedding breakfast. The prime objective was not the sale
of alcohol but an upmarket offering for visitors to York.
Non-residents could dine in the restaurant but would have
to pre-book due to its size. Use of the external area would
be constrained by the weather. The Applicant was
planning to sell sustainable local wines, craft beer, whisky,
gins and water, and not to replicate the offering of the
Volunteer Arms.



Page 12

Mr Staton contended that the licences held by the
Volunteer Arms and other premises in the area — the
Premier convenience store, St Paul’'s Lodge, and Kilima
Hotel - as described in paragraphs 6.2-6.8 of the case
summary in the Agenda Supplement, showed that
granting the application would not be a major change or
‘open the floodgates’ in the area as suggested in the
representations. Describing the premises, he said that the
external area was immediately behind the building and
included a car park with 12 spaces. There was student
accommodation to the east, and the east boundary was a
brick wall. To the south, Watson Street was shielded by
the annex of Holmwood House Hotel. The west boundary
adjoined the home of the former owners of the premises,
and the Applicant had agreed to increase the height of the
fence on this boundary. There would be planters in the
external area to deaden the noise and the area would be
cleared by 10pm. The low-level background music to be
played there would be monitored by the Applicant. The
Applicant was content to ensure that the car park was
used by residents only after 8pm and it would be closed by
10pm. Non-residents would be directed to the front door
entrance.

Referring to representations made about the car park, Mr
Staton said there would be no more parking spaces than
when the premises operated as Holgate Bridge Hotel with
16 bedrooms. In respect of the nearby schools, there
would be no increase in traffic, hotel guests would not be
checking in or out during school dropping-off times, and
children would not be exposed to drunken behaviour. The
focus of the operation would be on the supply of food and
drink to hotel residents and pre-booked diners. There
would be a limited range of wines and beers, no draught
supplies, and off-sales for residents / diners / guests only,
such as a bottle of wine to take home or out for a picnic. It
would be a quality offering to a limited clientele and there
would not be large groups of people drinking in the
garden.

In conclusion, Mr Staton stated that the issues of crime
and disorder suggested by the Representors were illusory.
The Applicant was investing a significant amount in the
business and wanted it to be a success. He referred to



Page 13

the operating schedule included in the application, which
detailed the steps to be taken with regard to the licensing
objectives, and noted that the application for late night
refreshment had been amended to 23:00-00:00 hours.

In response to questions from Mr Mitchell (Representor),

Mr Staton confirmed that:

e The earliest check-in time for guests would be 4pm.

e If check-in was being advertised as 3pm on
booking.com, the Applicant would be happy to correct
this.

In response to questions from the sub-committee, he

confirmed that:

e Arrangements for off-sales in other premises in the
area were set out in the schedule at pages 13-14 of the
supplementary papers.

e The number of covers in each of the licensed areas
was 16 in the restaurant, 12 in the bar/whisky room and
32 in the outside area.

e The Applicant would accept a condition of table service
only.

e The outside area could in theory be adapted for use in
adverse weather conditions but there were no plans to
do so.

e The closure time of 10pm for the outside area (page 59
of the papers) had been agreed on the advice of Public
Protection.

e Smokers would have to leave their drink to go outside
and smoke after 10pm.

e Windows in the dining room and bar would be closed at
10pm.

e Late night refreshment would cease at 23:00 but
service of alcohol would continue until 24:00 (page 41).

The representations made by Leo Charalambides,
Barrister, on behalf of several Representors, including
nos. 2, 10, 13, 15, 23 and 24 on the confidential list before
the sub-committee.

Mr Charalambides stated that the test to be applied under
Section 18 of the Licensing Act was the likely effect of the
application on the promotion of the licensing objectives;
however, this was not mentioned in the Applicant’s case
summary. He highlighted the key aims and purposes set



Page 14

out in paragraph 1.5 of the Licensing Act statutory
guidance, in particular the duty to encourage greater
community involvement and give local residents the
opportunity to have their say regarding licensing decisions
that may affect them. He said the issue was what was
suitable for this particular location, and therefore it was
wrong to focus on the conditions attached to other
premises in the area. He stated that the Applicant had
failed to engage with the licensing objectives and could
not comply with the requirement in the statutory guidance
to undertake a risk assessment because the application
kept shifting — at page 38 of the papers the application
referred to a maximum of 22 guests, but the capacity of
the bedrooms as provided online indicated a maximum of
52. There were further discrepancies in the papers — for
example, on the plan the capacity of the dining room was
given as 12, but in the description at page 38 it was 18.
Taking the highest and the lowest figures, the overall
maximum capacity was between 117 and 124.

With regard to the external area, he said that noise carried
across back gardens in the locality and that the Applicant
had advertised a race day offering. On days when the
community wanted to enjoy their gardens, the external
area could be packed with people, and bad language
would be audible to children —the guidance on protection
of children from harm included protection from expletives.
With heaters, blankets and awnings, maximum advantage
could be taken of the outside area all year round, and the
impact of the resulting intensification in the number of
people using the outside space in the heart of a residential
area would be huge.

In conclusion, Mr Charalambides stated that if the
application were granted, it should be with conditions to:
e require the premises to operate only as a hotel
providing overnight accommodation for guests;
¢ allow access to the hotel facilities for hotel residents
and their bona fide guests only;
¢ limit the number of people staying overnight to 24 (2
per room);
¢ not allow access to non-residents before 8 am or
after 11pm (except for staff);
e restrict the number of people on the premises to 36
(excluding staff);



Page 15

¢ not allow smoking in the external area after 17:00
hours and restrict the number of smokers to 4 at any
one time;

¢ allow the supply of alcohol between 08:00 and 23:00
only;

e restrict late night refreshment to hotel guests / room
service only;

¢ not allow any licensable activities or alcohol
consumption in the courtyard of the basement.

He stressed that residents were completely against the
use of the external area and suggested that the type of
alcohol supplied could also be restricted, to no more than
6-8 premium spirits and no draught beer. He added that
the area around Holgate Road was quiet and residential
and that the intensification and ever-shifting nature of the
proposals made them unsuited to the area. His suggested
conditions would allow the Applicant to operate a small,
boutique luxury hotel as requested, prevent it from turning
into the type of operation that had been advertised and
avoid the adverse impacts of granting the application as
submitted.

In response to a question from the sub-committee, Mr
Charalambides clarified that the representations in respect
of the nearby social housing for vulnerable adults related
to the potential adverse effects of people going on and off
the premises with drinks interacting with those vulnerable
adults.

The representations made by Tom Mitchell, a resident of
Holgate.

Mr Mitchell stated that he lived about a mile away from St
Paul’s Square and was the Chair of Governors of St
Paul’s Primary School. His children attended the school
and he had been walking to and from the area since 2019.
The school had 129 children on its roll, many from families
that lived in the surrounding area.

In relation to the application, he said that the main issue
was the protection of children from harm. The rear of the
premises was directly opposite the entrance/exit of the
school, which was on a small lane leading onto Watson
Terrace. The road and pavement were narrow and there



Page 16

was a lot of traffic at drop off and pick up times. There
were already issues with delivery vehicles on Watson
Terrace, with instances of them reversing and parking
outside the school. The application was for much longer
drinking and food service hours than previous operations.
There would be a need for supplies to be delivered to the
premises, resulting in an increased traffic risk that would
put children in harm’s way. Some children walked to and
from school unaccompanied. There would also be issues
with noise from the external area, which was 20-50 metres
from the school playground. The playing fields were even
closer. The sound would carry and the type of noise, as
demonstrated by Mr Charalambides, was a concern.
Children also walked past the front of the premises in
order to cross the road. The existing licences held by
other premises were not used to their full extent and were
not causing problems with noise etc. These premises did
not operate in the way that the Applicant proposed to do.
An OFSTED inspection had noted that the school ‘sits in
the heart of its community’. However the Applicant had
not engaged with the community at all, which said
something about his intentions.

In response to questions from the Applicant’s solicitor, Mr
Mitchell said that:

e School pick-up times were staggered, beginning at
3:10pm, with after-school clubs finishing at 4:15 pm
and wraparound care at 6pm.

e He would be surprised if the playground was as far
as 100m from the premises and if the sound did not
carry.

In response to a question from the sub-committee, he
confirmed that as far as he was aware there were no other
licensable activities taking place in the rear gardens of
premises to the front or rear of the school.

The Representors and the Applicant were each then given
the opportunity to sum up.

Mr Charalambides summed up, stating that he had set out
clear conditions to challenge Mr Staton’s assertion that the
hotel’s clientele would be limited and the numbers well-
controlled, and to meet what the Applicant said they
wanted. However, there had not been one question or



Page 17

engagement from the Applicant. He represented at least
7 families, and he was concerned that the Applicant had
not taken into account the location of the premises and the
requirement for community engagement as stated in the
guidance. The residents were appalled that their olive
branch had been dismissed and ignored, and the panel
should be too. The key was the location of the premises —
the Applicant wanted to use sunny evenings to promote
business in the hotel’s commercial interests with no regard
for local residents.

Mr Charalambides urged the panel, if they did not dismiss
the application out of hand, to apply the conditions he had
suggested to give the operator the small limited clientele
they had asked for. He added that it was a criminal
offence under S.158 of the Licensing Act to make false
statements to the sub-committee or in the application.

Mr Mitchell summed up, stating that he had now
measured the distance from the premises to the school
playground on Google Maps as 60 metres. He noted that
‘harm’ [to children] included both language and behaviour
and that there were large numbers of families using
facilities in the area all day and every day. The application
had the potential to be at odds with that use. One of the
ward councillors, ClIr Taylor, had also objected to the
application. He urged that it be rejected or that significant
restrictions be placed upon the licence to limit any
potential harm.

Mr Staton summed up, stating that the dramatic
representations from Mr Charalambides of large numbers
of drinkers ‘cheek by jowl’ with back gardens was exactly
not what the Applicant was seeking to achieve. The aim
was for a high-quality boutique hotel. The maximum
occupation, if all the sofa beds (which were mainly for
children) were in use would be 42. The outside area would
be cleared by 10 pm, and the Applicant would be happy to
close the back gate by 10 pm. He had no wish to put
children at risk of harm. The operating schedule set out
how the Applicant intended to address the licensing
objectives. The application was for a hotel offering with
restaurant facilities and some outside dining. The
intention of the Applicant was far from the gross picture
presented by Mr Charalambides. He asked the panel to



Page 18

grant the application as set out and clarified in the case
summary.

[At this point, Mr Charalambides stated that the maximum
number of 42 guests had not been included in the
application; the application was therefore misleading and
should be rejected as imprecise. Mr Staton replied that
the number was taken from the plan attached to the
application.]

The Sub-Committee sought and received the following
points of clarification from Mr Staton:

e The number of covers was 12 in the whisky
room/bar, 18 in the restaurant and 36 in the external
area.

e The maximum number of guests if all beds and sofa
beds were occupied was 42, although full occupancy
on any given day was unlikely.

e 7 of the rooms had sofa beds, but he was not sure
that their use could be restricted to children.

e The only smoking area was the one to the rear of
the premises; smoking could in theory take place
there at any time.

In respect of the proposed licence, the Sub-Committee
had to determine whether the licence application
demonstrated that the premises would not undermine the
licensing objectives. Having regard to the above evidence
and representations received, the Sub-Committee
considered the steps which were available to them to take
under Section 18(3) (a) of the Licensing Act 2003 as it
considered necessary for the promotion of the Licensing
Objectives:

Option 1: Grant the licence in the terms applied for. This
option was rejected.

Option 2:  Grant the licence with modified/additional
conditions imposed by the sub-committee.
This option was approved.

Option 3:  Grant the licence to exclude any of the
licensable activities to which the application
relates and modify/add conditions accordingly.
This option was rejected.



Page 19

Option 4: Refuse to specify a person in the licence as a
premises supervisor. This option was
rejected.

Option 5:  Reject the application. This option was
rejected.

Resolved: That Option 2 be approved and the licence be
granted for the following activities and timings with
modified/additional conditions imposed by the sub-
committee as set out below:

Activity Timings

Late night 23:00 to midnight each day for

refreshment — indoors hotel residents and their bona
fide guests

Supply of alcohol - on 24 hours each day for hotel
and off the premises  residents and their bona fide
guests

08:00 to midnight for members
of the public

Opening hours 08:00 to midnight each day

The Operating Schedule conditions contained in
paragraphs 12 to 15 (inclusive) of the Agenda shall be
added to the licence SUBJECT TO the following
modifications:

(a)Condition 14b is deleted and is replaced with the
following condition:

All external doors and windows in the ground floor
dining area and basement bar/Whisky Room at the
rear of the hotel building shall be closed (save for
immediate access or egress) from 21:00 onwards
during operating hours.

(b)Condition 14f is deleted and is replaced with the
following condition:



Page 20

No bottles shall be placed in outside areas between
21:00 hours and 08:00 hours on the following day.

(c) Conditions 12| and 149 are deleted and are
replaced with the following condition:

Open containers of alcohol shall not be removed
from the premises

(d) Condition 14h is deleted and is replaced with the
following conditions:

The supply of alcohol shall be by waiter/waitress
service only. Save for hotel bedrooms, alcohol must
not be sold, supplied, or consumed on the premises
otherwise than to seated persons and there shall be
no vertical drinking of alcohol on the premises.

In the ground floor outside areas to the rear of the
premises alcohol must not be sold, supplied, or
consumed other than to seated persons who are
taking substantial table meals served and consumed
at the table and provided always that the
consumption of alcohol by such persons is ancillary
to taking such meals.

The use of the ground floor outside areas to the rear
of the premises shall cease at 21:00 every day.
Notwithstanding this condition at any one time up to
4 people shall be permitted to smoke in these
outside areas after 21:00.

The following conditions shall also be added to the
licence:

After 20:00 every day the car park shall be used by
hotel residents only. After 22:00 every day, the car
park gates shall be closed and shall not be used by
hotel residents or members of the public except in
the event of an emergency.

There shall be a maximum of:
- 12 covers in the basement bar/Whisky Room
- 18 covers in the restaurant



Reasons:

Page 21

- 36 covers in the ground floor outside areas to the
rear of the premises

All conditions offered in the operating schedule shall
be included in the licence, unless contradictory to
the above timings and conditions.

The licence is also subject to the mandatory
conditions applicable to licensed premises.

()  The Sub-Committee must promote the
licensing objectives and must have regard to the
Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing
Act 2003 and the Council’s own Statement of
Licensing Policy.

(i)  The Sub-Committee noted that the premises
are not located within an area where a cumulative
impact policy applies.

(i)  The Sub-Committee noted that this was a new
licence application and was very conscious of the
premises’ location in close proximity to local
residences, social housing for vulnerable adults, a
nursery school and a primary school.

(iv) The Sub-Committee carefully considered the
local residents’ objections that the proposals will
effectively result in an intensification of the use of
the premises (which it noted was previously
operated as an unlicensed hotel by the previous
owners) and would make it unsuitable for the
location particularly due to the potential for noise
and other adverse effects on the surrounding area
particularly from the use of the outside area of the
premises.

(v) They also noted that Public Protection had
agreed a proposed condition with the Applicant to
cease the use of the outside area from 10pm daily to
address potential public nuisance issues and that
there had been no objection to the application from
the other Responsible Authorities.



Page 22

(vi) The Sub-committee noted the evidence put
forward at the hearing on behalf of the Applicant as
to the character of the style of the proposed
operation and its operating schedule and was
satisfied that the management of the premises
would make every effort to promote the four
licensing objectives.

(vii)  Whilst the Sub-Committee acknowledged the
concerns expressed by residents, it did not find any
evidence to justify a refusal of the application in
order to promote the licensing objectives nor on the
basis of alleged discrepancies in the application.
The Sub-Committee felt on the basis of the evidence
before it that the imposition of suitable additional
conditions on the premises licence would be
adequate to promote the licensing objectives in this
location.

(viii) In relation to the concerns raised by residents
about the potential for noise disturbance and public
nuisance generated from the use of the outside
area, the Sub-Committee was satisfied on the basis
of the evidence before it that, subject to the
imposition of suitable conditions, the prevention of
public nuisance objective would not be undermined.
It attached great weight to the lack of representation
from Public Protection, which had agreed that the
use of the outside area should cease at 10pm. The
Sub-Committee considered it was appropriate to
impose restrictions on the use of the external area
after 9pm daily (including by smokers), the disposal
of bottles and the use of the gate and the private car
park to the rear of the premises. It was also
considered necessary to ensure a food led operation
outdoors with seated consumption only and a limited
number of covers (in accordance with the
application). In view of the nature of the proposed
activities, it considered these measures were
adequate and proportionate to deal with the
concerns raised by residents, as the concerns were
mainly speculative.

(ix) The Sub-Committee was persuaded that there
was no reason to believe that the supply of alcohol



Page 23

within the internal areas of the hotel would
undermine any of the licensing objectives, subject to
the additional conditions it imposed to manage the
supply of alcohol, to prevent vertical drinking, to limit
the number of covers (in accordance with the
application) and to restrict the opening of the hotel’s
rear windows and doors.

(X) The Sub-Committee acknowledged the
concerns expressed by residents that the proposal
would be harmful to children but it considered that
these concerns were speculative. The Sub-
Committee also considered the fact that the Police
did not object to the application carried great weight
and reassured the Sub-Committee that, given the
nature of the proposed operation, the prevention of
crime licensing objective would be unlikely to be
undermined.

(xi)  Accordingly, in all of the circumstances of the
case the Sub-Committee was satisfied that with the
additional conditions it imposed on the licence it
would be sufficiently robust to allay the fears of local
residents and that it could operate without
undermining the licensing objectives. It considered
that the conditions were justified as being
appropriate and proportionate for the promotion of
the licensing objectives.

(xii) It was also noted that the Licensing Act 2003
has a key protection for communities that allows at
any stage, following the grant of a premises licence,
a Responsible Authority or ‘other persons’, such as
a local resident, to ask the Licensing Authority to
review the licence if they consider that one or more
of the licensing objectives are being undermined.

Clir R Melly, Chair
[The meeting started at 10.15 am and finished at 1.45 pm].



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 25

City of York Council Committee Minutes
Meeting Licensing/Gambling Hearing

Date 22 June 2023

Present Councillors Cuthbertson, Nicholls and Rose

7. Chair

10.

Resolved: That Cllr Cuthbertson be elected as Chair of the
hearing.

Introductions

The Chair introduced the Sub-Committee Members, the Legal
Adviser and the Solicitor shadowing her, the Democratic
Services officer and the Democracy Officer shadowing her, the
Senior Licensing Officer and the Applicant, Mrs Edwards.

Declarations of Interest

Members were invited to declare at this point in the meeting any
disclosable pecuniary interest or other registerable interest they
might have in respect of business on the agenda, if they had not
already done so in advance on the Register of Interests. No
interests were declared.

Exclusion of Press and Public

Resolved: That the press and public be excluded from the
meeting during the sub-committee’s deliberations
and decision-making at the end of the hearing, on
the grounds that the public interest in excluding the
public outweighs the public interest in that part of the
meeting taking place in public, under Regulation 14
of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations
2005.



11.

Page 26

The Determination of a Section 18(3)(a) Application by Dark
Horse Espresso Bar Ltd for a Premises Licence in respect
of The Dark Horse Espresso Bar, 147A Bishopthorpe Road,
York, YO23 1NZ. (CYC-072806)

Members considered an application by Dark Horse Espresso
Bar Ltd. for a premises licence in respect of The Dark Horse
Espresso Bar, 147A Bishopthorpe Road, York YO23 1NZ.

In considering the application and the representations made, the
Sub-Committee concluded that the following licensing objectives
were relevant to this Hearing:

1. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder
2. The Prevention of Public Nuisance

In coming to their decision, the Sub-Committee took into
consideration all the evidence and submissions that were
presented, and determined their relevance to the issues raised
and the above licensing objectives, including:

1.  The application form.

2.  The papers before it including the two written
representations received from local residents.

3.  The Licensing Manager’s report and the comments of the
Senior Licensing Officer at the Hearing.

The Senior Licensing Officer outlined the report and the
annexes, confirming that the premises were not in the
Cumulative Impact Area and that the Applicant had carried
out the consultation process correctly. She noted that
there were no representations from Responsible
Authorities and that amendments and additional
conditions had been agreed with the police, as set out in
Annex 3. She also drew attention to the representations
made by other parties at Annex 5. Finally, she advised
the sub-committee of the options open to them in
determining the application.

In response to questions from the sub-committee, the
Licensing Manager confirmed that:
e there had been no response to consultation from the
Planning department;



Page 27

¢ the police had not suggested any additional
conditions in relation to race days.

The representations made by the Applicant.

The Applicant stated that the business was owned and run
by herself and her husband Mark. It currently operated
from a horsebox in Shambles Market (in the red zone of
the CIA) where it had been located since 2017. It had
been licensed since 2020. She was the licence holder for
the premises and had a proven track record for the
responsible service of alcohol.

The Applicant explained that the new premises would be
primarily a café serving quality coffee and food. The
business was very family oriented and had created a
warm, relaxed atmosphere. They were recognised for
their coffee and had many regular customers. The aim
was to provide a welcoming space for local residents,
operating as a neighbourhood café where people could
enjoy a coffee or a glass of wine with friends. Their
customers were families, walkers, retirees and mothers
with their children, rather than groups of drinkers. There
would not be a pub atmosphere. The planning application
(mentioned on page 46) was for a deck to be built on the
outside area to level the ground so that people could sit
there. There may be some chatter from the outside area
but it wouldn’t be too loud, and use of the area would be
weather-dependent. She envisaged people sitting there
with a glass of wine before moving on to have dinner
elsewhere. She had agreed the police conditions
requiring the outside area to be closed off by 9pm on
Fridays and Saturdays. On other days it would be closed
by 6pm. The windows and doors of the premises would
be closed after these times. The idea was just to make
the most of the summer weather when it was warm.

The Applicant went on to say that she appreciated that the
premises were in a residential area but pointed out that
there were many other businesses nearby, including a
number of shops and restaurants as well as pubs and
other licensed premises. These included The Winning
Post, the Working Men’s Club, the Liquor Store at The
Chocolate Works and, on Bishopthorpe Road, 2 Many
Wines and Angel on the Green. In response to the



Page 28

representations at Annex 5, she highlighted the conditions
agreed with the police regarding closure of the outside
area and stated that the intention was not to open late on
every Friday and Saturday. On race days, the premises
might even close before the last race finished. It would
not be a place that racegoers would want to go; they were
likely to pass it by on their way to The Winning Post.
During an interview by The Press she had mentioned live
music; by this she did not mean a band or anything loud
but an acoustic singer in the afternoons to provide
background music and atmosphere.

In conclusion, the Applicant stated that she had had
positive feedback on the application from local residents
and from regulars at the horsebox operation in Shambles
Market. She wanted the new operation to be an exciting
addition to the neighbourhood for people to enjoy with
their friends and families.

In response to questions from the sub-committee, the
Applicant confirmed that:

e It was intended to have a food offering in the
evenings, but to allow customers the option to have
a glass of wine or beer without food, for example as
a pre-dinner drink.

e Alcohol ancillary to food in the mornings was an
option for an occasional celebration - for example a
glass of fizz with a birthday brunch or a Baileys with
a coffee or hot chocolate - in line with the current
operation in the horsebox.

e In the evenings, an Australian / European café
culture scene was envisaged, with people meeting
their friends for a coffee as an alternative to going to
a pub.

e Early closure on race days would eliminate having to
deal with any related issues; she would not object to
restrictions on race days being included on the
licence.

e Off-sales would be of artisan wines, and beers from
Ainsty Ales to take home to enjoy later; this would
not attract people who wanted to drink on the street,
and there was an off-licence opposite the premises.

e Regarding trade between 9 and 11pm, they were
going to test this out and adjust the opening hours



Page 29

accordingly if there was not much business during
this time.

The Applicant declined the opportunity to sum up.

In respect of the proposed licence, the Sub-Committee
had to determine whether the licence application
demonstrated that the premises would not undermine the
licensing objectives. Having regard to the above evidence
and representations received, the Sub-Committee
considered the steps which were available to them to take
under Section 18(3) (a) of the Licensing Act 2003 as it
considered necessary for the promotion of the Licensing
Objectives:

Option 1: Grant the licence in the terms applied for. This
option was rejected.

Option 2:  Grant the licence with modified/additional
conditions imposed by the sub-committee.
This option was approved.

Option 3: Grant the licence to exclude any of the
licensable activities to which the application
relates and modify/add conditions accordingly.
This option was rejected.

Option 4: Refuse to specify a person in the licence as a
premises supervisor. This option was
rejected.

Option 5:  Reject the application. This option was
rejected.

Resolved: That Option 2 be approved and the licence be
granted for the following activities and timings with
modified / additional conditions imposed by the sub-
committee, as set out below:

Activity Timings

Supply of alcohol - | 08:00 — 18:00 Mon to Thurs
on and off the 08:00 — 23:00 Fri & Sat
premises 08:00 — 21:00 Sun




Reasons:

Page 30

Opening hours 07:30 — 18:00 Mon to Thurs
07:30 — 23:00 Fri & Sat
07:30 — 21:00 Sun

The conditions contained in the Operating Schedule
and the additional conditions numbered 1 to 12
inclusive set out in Annex 3 of the Agenda shall be
added to the licence.

The following condition shall also be added to the
licence:

All sales of alcohol between 08:00 and 11:00 hours
daily shall be ancillary to food.

The licence is also subject to the mandatory
conditions applicable to licensed premises

) The Sub-Committee must promote the
licensing objectives and must have regard to the
Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing
Act 2003 and the Council’s own Statement of
Licensing Policy.

(i)  The Sub-Committee noted that the premises
are not located within an area where a cumulative
impact policy applies.

(i)  The Sub-Committee noted that this was a new
licence application and was very conscious of the
premises’ location in a residential area in close
proximity to local residences. The Sub-Committee
carefully considered the concerns raised by the local
residents who had made representations in writing
relating to public nuisance with regard to concerns
about noise disturbance from the premises, in
particular associated with use of the outside space,
that could impact on their quality of life. Concern was
also raised as to the impact of the premises on crime
and disorder, particularly on race days.

(iv)  The Sub-Committee noted that the Police, who
are the Licensing Authority’s main source of advice
on matters relating to the promotion of the crime and



Page 31

disorder licensing objective, had agreed with the
applicant a number of additional conditions to be
added to the grant of a licence. The Sub-Committee
considered the fact that the Police did not object to
the application (subject to the imposition of agreed
conditions) carried great weight.

(v) It noted that there were no representations
from any other Responsible Authority.

(vi)  Whilst the Sub-Committee acknowledged the
concerns expressed by residents, it also considered
the nature of the proposed activities, noting that the
establishment was intended to primarily operate as a
café/wine bar, rather than as a vertical drinking
establishment. The Sub-Committee was reassured
by the evidence given by the Applicant, her level of
experience generally and that she had agreed with
the Police to address concerns about in particular the
possible impact of noise disturbance from the outside
area and to a number of other conditions including
that the supply of alcohol prior to 11am shall be
ancillary to food.

(vii)  The Sub-Committee was satisfied overall with
the proposed arrangements and responsible attitude
of the Applicant and felt that the additional conditions
she had agreed with the Police were appropriate and
proportionate to deal with the concerns raised by
local residents. The Sub-Committee did not find any
evidence to justify a refusal of the application and it
was felt that further conditions would not be
necessary in order to promote the licensing
objectives on the basis of the evidence before the
Sub-Committee.

(viii) It was also noted that the Licensing Act 2003
has a key protection for communities that allows at
any stage, following the grant of a premises licence,
a Responsible Authority or ‘other persons’, such as a
local resident, to ask the Licensing Authority to
review the licence if they consider that one or more
of the licensing objectives are being undermined,
therefore allaying the concerns of the local residents.



Page 32

(ix)  Accordingly, in all of the circumstances of the
case it was felt that the decision of the Sub-
Committee was justified as being appropriate and
proportionate for the promotion of the licensing
objectives.

Clir | Cuthbertson, Chair
[The meeting started at 10.05 am and finished at 11.02 am].



Page 33 Agenda Item 6

COUNCIL

,

Licensing Act 2003 Sub Committee Date 19 July 2023

Report from the Director — Environment, Transport & Planning

Section 18(3)(a) Application for a premises licence for 75 Balmoral
Terrace, York YO23 1HR

Summary

1. This report seeks Members’ determination of an application for the
grant of a premises licence, which has been made under the
Licensing Act 2003.

Application reference number: CYC 073025
Name of applicant: Sara Winlow & Robert Darbyshire

Type of authorisation applied for. Grant of Premises Licence

a M w0 D

Summary of application:

The proposal is to allow for the provision of the following activities at
a coffee shop and florist.

Proposed Activity Timings

Supply of alcohol — on & off the | 12 noon until 22:30 everyday
premises

Opening hours 08:30 until 22:30
Background

6. A copy of the application can be found at Annex 1, including a
plan(s) of the premises.

7. The premises is described in the application as a coffee shop and
florists. The coffee shop aspect is ancillary to the business with
limited seating.



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Page 34

An overview of the circumstances in which entertainment activities
are not licensable can be found at Annex 2.

Promotion of Licensing Objectives

The operating schedule submitted by the applicant shows that the
licensing objectives would be met as follows:

General

The coffee area is a small ancillary are of the business, limited
numbers will prevent large groups. The objective is for a relaxed
environment for small numbers of local residents away from larger
pubs and venues.

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder
CCTV monitoring on site and strict challenge 25 policy.
Public Safety

Small capacity prevents large numbers of groups. Visible and easily
accessible fire prevention equipment on site.

The Prevention of Public Nuisance

Limited capacity seating area for light refreshment, so no large
numbers. CCTV on site to prevent public nuisance.

The Protection of Children from Harm

Premises will operate a challenge 25 policy as well as CCTV on site
to ensure safety.

Special Policy Consideration

This premises is not located within the cumulative impact area.
Consultation

Consultation was carried out by the applicant in accordance with s13,
and s17 (5) of the Act and Regulation 42, Parts 2 and 4 of the
Licensing Act 2003 (Premises Licences and Club Premises
Certificates) Regulations 2005, which concern the displaying of a
notice on the premises and an advertisement in a local paper giving
details of the application and serving a copy of the application on all



17.

18.

19.

20

21.
22.

23.

24.

25.
26.

27.

Page 35

responsible authorities. The applicant complied with all statutory
requirements. In addition the relevant ward councillors and/or parish
council were notified by way of register.

All procedural aspects of this application have been complied with.

Summary of Representations made by Responsible Authorities

North Yorkshire Police made representation on the prevention of
crime and disorder, however they have mediated with the applicant
who has agreed to amend their operating schedule. The agreed
conditions can be found at Annex 3. Therefore, North Yorkshire Police
have withdrawn their representation.

Summary of Representations made by Other Parties

There has been one relevant representation received from other
persons. The list of representors is attached at Annex 4.

. The representations are predominantly based on the grounds of the

prevention of public nuisance and the prevention of crime and
disorder objectives. They state that this objective(s) will be
undermined if the application is granted.

A copy of the representation is attached at Annex 5.

A map showing the general area around the venue is attached at
Annex 6.

The mandatory conditions that will be attached to this licence if
granted (if they apply) can be found at Annex 7. The Legislation and
Policy considerations can be found at Annex 8.

Options

By virtue of s18(4) of the Act, the Committee have the following
options available to them in making their decision: -

Option 1: Grant the licence in the terms applied for.

Option _2: Grant the licence with modified/additional conditions
imposed by the licensing committee.

Option 3: Grant the licence to exclude any of the licensable activities
to which the application relates and modify/add conditions
accordingly.



28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

Page 36

Option 4: Refuse to specify a person on the licence as premises
supervisor.

Option 5: Reject the application.

Analysis

The following could be the result of any decision made this Sub
Committee:-

Option 1: This decision could be appealed at Magistrates Court by
any of the representors.

Option 2: This decision could be appealed at Magistrates Court by the
applicant or any of the representors.

Option 3: This decision could be appealed at Magistrates Court by
the applicant or any of the representors.

Option 4: This decision could be appealed at Magistrates Court by
the applicant.

Option 5: This decision could be appealed at Magistrates Court by the
applicant.

Council Plan

The Licensing Act 2003 has four objectives the prevention of crime
and disorder, public safety, prevention of public nuisance and the
protection of children from harm.

By taking the statutory requirements of the Licensing Act into
consideration, as well as the four licensing objectives when
determining licensing applications the Council are supporting the new
and existing licence trade, as well as local residents and
businesses. The functions support the Council’s Plan of safe
communities and culture for all, and a good quality of life for everyone.

Implications

Financial - N/A

Human Resources (HR) — N/A



39.

40.

41.

Page 37

Equalities — N/A

Legal — This decision could be appealed at Magistrates Court by the
applicant or any of the representors.

Crime and Disorder - The Committee is reminded of their duty
under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to consider the crime and
disorder implications of their decisions and the authority’s
responsibility to co-operate in the reduction of crime and disorder in
the city.

Information Technology (IT) — N/A
Property — N/A

Other — none
Risk Management

All Members of the Licensing Act 2003 Committee have received full
training on the Act and the regulations governing hearings. They are
aware that any decision made which is unreasonable or unlawful
could be open to challenge resulting in loss of image, reputation and
potential financial penalty.

The report details the options available to the panel in determining the
application and recommends that a decision be reached. There are
no risks involved with this recommendation.

Recommendations

Members determine the application.
Reason: To address the representations received as required by the
Licensing Act 2003.



Page 38

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Lesley Cooke James Gilchrist
Licensing Manager Director Environment, Transport & Planning

Tel No. 01904 551515

Report N Date
Approved 26.06.2023

Specialist Implications Officer(s)
Head of Legal & Democratic Services
Ext: 1004

Wards Affected: Micklegate

For further information please contact the author of the report
Background Papers:

Annex 1 - Application form

Annex 2 - Overview of Circumstances in which Entertainment
Actitivies are not Licensable

Annex 3 - Conditions agreed with North Yorkshire police

Annex 4 - List of representors

Annex 5 - Representation(s)

Annex 6 - Map of area

Annex 7 - Mandatory conditions

Annex 8 - Legislation and policy



Page 39

AWIQ% ‘

"fﬁ; =0T -}

2 YOR

B
E i

CITY OF YORK COUNCIL
Licensing Services, Hazal Court EcoDapot, James Street, York, Y0410 305

Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003
PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. IF you are

completing this form by hand, plaase write legivly in block capitals. In all cases ensure your answers

are inside the boxes and writisn in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

. 5 .

We O e O Kefam e 06
(insart name(s) of appllcent)

apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises

described in Part 1 helow {the pramises) and Ywe are making this application to you as the

relevant licensing authority in accordance with section 12 of the Licenzing Act 2003

Part 1 - Premises Details

[ Postal address of pramises or, If none. ordnance survey map reference or description '.
i =1 ARLMafe:. TLLRE OO

| Post own

S ¢4

I Fast code

Taiaphone humber of premises (if any) | « e e |

|
Non-domestic rateable value of premises [E THos {

Part 2 - Applicant Details
Fiease state whether you are applying for @ premises licence as:

Please tick as appropriate
a)  anindividual or individuals® [Z’ please complete saction (A)

b) & person other than an individual*

Lo as g limited company/limited liability partnership [7] please complete section (B)

li. as a partnership {other than limited liability) [] please complete section (B)
fi. &% an unincorporated associalion ar [ please complele section (8)

v other (for example a statutory corparatian) ] please complete sectior: (B)



¢} arecognised club

Page 40

please complete section (B)

d}  acharity [ please complete saction {B)
e) the praprietor of an educational establishmant [7] please camplete section (B)
f)  ahealth service body ] nlease complets section (8)
g} & person who is registered under Parl 2 of tha Cara [[] please complete section (B)
Standards Act 2000 {c14) in respect of an independent
haspital w Wales
ga) aperson who is registerad under Chapter 2 of Part 1 ] please completa section (B)
of the Health and Social Care Act 2008 (within the
meaning of that patt) in an independent hospital in
England
h)  the chief officer of police of & police farce in England | ] please complete section (B)
and Wales

“If you are applylng as a person described in {a) or (b) please confima (by ticking yes to one box

below:

* | am carrying on of praposing to carry on a business which invalves the use of the [}3’

premises for licensable activities; or

»  am making the application pursuant to a

o statulory function or

o afunction discharged by virtue of Her Majesty’s prefogative O

(A) INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS (il in as applicable)

Mr [:] Nirs
Surname

N Cias
Date of Birth
Nationality

Current postal
address if diffarent
fram premises
address

Post Town

n Miss

l

| ﬂ,ﬂ,!"(fii\:’

(SR RN

Cllyar dile
{tor sxample, Revy

Ms U/
First names

‘ ! SRAKL Jrrat G aRBETH ]
Please tick yes
|
| 1am 18 years old or over

g Anemonei  TERLACL

Postcode "ol s,



e — —

Page 41

Daytime conlact telephone numbaer
Email address (optional) | < T At . Corn

Where applicabie (if demonsirating a right to work via the Home Office online right ta work checking
service), the 'share code’ provided to the applicant by that service (please see note 15 for
information).

SECOND INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (if applicable)

3 oo ] Other title
Mr Mrs Migs Ms U {for example, Rev)

Surname First names

DRLMAASH RS FORGRT

Please tick ves

"

Date of Birth [ ‘ | I am 18 years old or over 4
| ]

|

Nationality ] ReATichs |

Current postal l 6 farwratnt TERARC G
address if different ’ '

from premises

addrass, ’

Posl Town ‘ g fin Postcode PSSR N YA

Daytime contact telephone number l

| ~
Email address {optional) |‘ ABIL | O o

Where applicable (if demonstrating a right to work via the Home Office online right lo work checking
service), the ‘share sode’ provided fo the applicant by that service (please sae note 15 for
inforrnation).

a3



Page 42

(B) OTHER APPLICANTS

Please provide name and registered address of applicant in full. Whare appropriate please give any
registered number. o case of a partnarship or olher joint venture (other than a body corporats),

please give the name and address of each party concerned.

[ name

‘ Address

Registerad nuraber (where applicable)

1
|
|
'!
i Description of applicant (for exaraple, partnership, company, unincorporatad assotiation etc.)
|
i

Telephone numbser (il any)

I £-mail address (optional)

Part 3 Opsarating Scheduls
Day Monthr  Year
Q! g \ e [ i
When do you want the premises licence 1o start? 2 | | n o § 2 A
1 _
Oay

Month  Year
If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period, ’ ! [ [ l
when do you want it to end? | |

| Pleasg give a'genaral dascnplion of the premises (please read guidance note 1)

6 COfFaG SHal D FLanikTs  Twe coffct, Shie? PSFLET
} . P A e LSINGS S {ad?

£G L) PN RT RN T ~2 1 oy ar. The GuSiNgS 1T bt

| Liwng TED SERyTIr3 G

i

If 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the premises
at any ane {ime, please state the number expected to attend




Page 43

What icensable aclivities do you intend 1o carry o fram the pramisps?
(Plesse ses seniions 1 and 14 of e Lisanking Act 2003 and Sehestules 1 and 2 1o the Licensing Acl 2003)

Please: tick il yes
Proviston of regulated entertsinment

) plays (if ticking yes, fill iy box A ]
bBi  Hims {if ticking yes, Bllln box 8) 1
c)y  indoor sporfing avents (If ticking yes, fill in by C) 1
d) | hoxing br wrestling entertainment (if licking yes, fill in box D) Il
€) Hee music (if teking yes, i box E) ]
§ recorded music (if ticking ves, il in box F) N
) r.\'ﬁrlﬁrmﬁnce of dance {if ticking ves. fill in box G) '
h) anything of g similar description to that falling within (), (1) or {n) [
(if ticking yes, fill in box H}
Provigion of late night refreshment {if ticking ves. &4 i bex 1} W
Sala by retail of alcohol {if ficking yes, il if bux J) v’

in alf cases complete boxes K, L and ¢



A

Page 44

Plays Wi the performance of a play take place Indosors or Indoers m

Standerd days and timings outdoors or both — plaana lick (pleyse read guidanca note

(ploase read guidancenote 7) | 3 Quidoors |}

puy | Start Finish aoth O

Mon N Plezss give further details hore (plsuse read guidance note 4}

Tue [

Wed oy B State any seascnal variations for performing play (please read guidance nole 5)

Thur

Frl Non standerd timings, Where you Intend to uss the premisen for the parformance of
plays at different times to (hose llsted In the column en the left, plaase list (pleass
read guidance note 6)

Sat

1 Sun N

B

Fiims Wilt the exhibition of a films take placa indoors or Indoors D
Standurd days and Umings outdoors or both ~ please lick [ploase read guldance note
(pléase read guidancamote 7) | 3 Outdoars O .
Dey | Start Finish Both O
Mon Plonss glve furtirer detalls here (nleass read guldance note 4)
. Tue
Wad State any seasenal variations for the exhibition of filma (plesss read guidence note 5)
I_Thur ]
i Non standard timings. Whera you intond to use the premisss for the exhibldon of
fiirms at difforent timus Lo Yhose Hsted In thig sofumn on the left, please llst (plesse
read guidance nots 6)
Sat
Sun
| - ———




C

Page 45

indoor sporting svents
Standard days and fimlags
(please read guidance nots 7)

Day Start Finlah

Mon
Tue
Wed
Trur
Fei

Sat

Sun

D

Please give further detalls (please read guidance note 4)

Siate any aeasanal variations for Indoor sporting events (please razd guidance nota 5;

Non standord tminys. Where you inlend to use the premises for indonr sporting
avents st diffurent tmey 1o tose listed in the solumn an the loft, please NIst. {plsase
read guidance nots 6)

Boxing or wrestiing
entertalipment

Standdrd days and timings
{please read guidance nota 7)

Day Btart Finist
Mon -

Tue

Wad

Yhur

Fri

8at

Sun

Will the boxlng or wraetling entertainment taks place Indoors ! B
Indoors or outgoors ar both ~ pleasa tick {piease read |

guldance note 3) [l
Outdoors :

) Both |[:]

Pleana glve further detalls here (;leans raad guidance note 4)

Stata any seasanal varlations for the boulng ar wrestling antertalnment (please read

guidence nate 5)

Non standare timings. Where you Intend to use the premises for boxing or wrestling
antertainrnant at different timas {0 those ljated In (he column on fha left, pivege fist,
(please tead guidance note 6}




E

Page 46

Live music
Standard days and imings
iplease oad Quidance nole 7}

Day | Start Finlgh

Mon [
Tue

Weod

Thuy

Fri
Snt

Sun

- Wil the parformance of llve music take place Indoors {ndoors u

ov outdnare ar both - please tick {please read guidence
note 3} Gutdoors {j
Both il

Blaase give further detalis hare {please read guidanue note 43

——— -

State any sanaonal variations far the parfarmance of live music {plvase rmad guidance
nite §)

S
Non standard timings. Where you Intand Yo use the premises for the performanca of
live music at giffersnt imes to those listed in the column on the lof, please liat.

{Figase read guidance nte &) .

F

Racorded music
Standard days and timings
. {pleasa read gudance nots 7)

pay | Start Flnish

Mon |

Tue
Wed
Thuy
£ri
Sat

Bun

Will the playing of recorded music take place indoors Indoors E]

or outdoors of koth - please tick {please read guidance — < —

note 3} Qutdoors C]
Bath 0

Plaase give turther details hera (piease read guidance note 4)

State any seagonal variations for the playing of recorded musle {please read quidance
note 51

Noin standand timings. Whare you Intend to use the premises for the playing of
racordsd music at diffarent times to those listed in the column on the lefi, plkass tist
(pirase read guidance note 6}

G

ﬁ;ﬁormal1ca of dance

]_Wiﬂ tive porformance of dance take place infoors or ’ Indoors [ [:; l




Page 47

standard days and timings
fpleaxes reard guidanse note 71

autdears or bath — please Uck (pleass mad goidance aote

3) Outdoors

Day Btars Finigh

Mon
Tue

Wed

Thur |°

Fri |
Sat

Bun i

Both

]

Please give furthar details hera (please raad gudance nota 43

State any seasornal variations for the perfonmance of dance {(pleass rend guigance note
5)

Noit stanctard timings. Where you Intend to usa the pramizes for tha performance of
dance at differant times to theae listad In the column on the lef, pleass list. {plcase
raad guitdance note 6}

H

Anything of a simifar
description te that
falting within (2), (f} or
{8) ,
Standard Jays sl Gmings
(pleasa raar quidance note 7)

Fleage give a dascription of the type of antertainment you will he providing

Day Start Finish

Mon
Tua
Wad

:' Thur

 Fri ]

- Sat

Sun

Wil the entartainment take place Indoors or outdoors ndnors l {“}

or both - pleasa tick {pleass read guidanes note 33 —  E—
Outdoors [ [:I
Roth I [_J

Plaase glvs further detaila hars {pleass mad guidance note 4)

State any seagoenal varlations for the entartalnment of a similar description to that
1 failing within (e}, () oz (g} (please iead guidanice nute 53

Non etandard timinga. Whera you intand to use the promises for the enterfainment
of & similiar doscriptlon to thet falling within e), 1) or p) at diferent tinea to those
listed inn the colump an the left, please list. (pirase rend quidance nota 6;

!

l.ate night refreshment
Standard days and imings
(vleasa read guidance note 7}

Will the pravision of iate night refreshment take place Indeore “3
- intioars or outdoors ar both -- please tick (please read . e —
guidanie nate 3 Dutdoors m




Page 48

Day Btarg

Mon

Tue

Wed
Thiki
Fri |

Sat

J

Supply of alcohol
Standard daye and timings
{please read guidance nots 7)

] Bath

Please give further details hore (plense read guidance nete 4}

State any seasonal variations far the provision of late night rafrashment {ploasa read
guidance nole §)

Non standard timings. Where you intend tg use the premises for the provigion of fate
night relreshment at differant imes fo those listed in the calume on the fe®, pleass

list. (plaase read guldance note &)

Wil the supply of alcohol ba Yor consumptian on or oft On the premisges | E:]
tha pramises or bath - please lick {plesge read quidance | =
neta 8) : Off the premises i

i
T

By | Start | Finish
Mon izasy | Linn
Tue ] iz 0ed | LR
| 1
1 Wed

Thur [ e X A5 T

Fri PR | TG
B | |

st oo [12a

Sun  |CLOG (LR

Py

Both |

State sny seasanal variations for the supply of alcohiol (alease read yuidance note 6)

Non standard timings., Whera you Intend to use the premises for the supply of
slcahol at different times to thoss listad [n the column on the laft, ploase Yst. (pleasa
read guidance note 6)

10



Page 49

State the name and detalls of the indlvidual whom yow wish to specify on the licence as the
desighated pramisas supervisor (pleaga see declaration about the enfitlement to work in the
checkilst at tho end of the form)

Name Py 20 oppmvsHeG

Adicire

 Posteode b

Parsonal licence aumber (if known) €M (¢ « 056G %

Insuing ficensing authority [T inown) Ly

RERVN

K

Plaase highlight any adult entertainment ar services, activilies, olher entertainment o matiers

ansillary te the use of the premizes that may give rfise 1o concern in respest of childien (plaage
read guldance fale 9)

Smee. nf FOfAUoe Wiy GG TThe aulM punest Car e pansinn
Sy SYEL,  paaiil B

FEOVIGOD tiewduns R Cletlipet 25

N DR Y Testd

1




-
¢

Hours premises arg
open to the public

Page 50

Hata any ssasonal valiatkens

FeAHe (G G

Tiny | Starg Friah
ion ; ST LA
Tee | mype (T
| i
— -
Waed . SN0 | 1K L
|
T |
m | h
1 | “
Sal ‘ -
S l %

Ron standard Wimings, Where you intend [o open the premisss to be opan to the
puhlic o} diffarent fmes frow Yse Usted v the tplumn on e el pleass gt
{pleaue mad guidan [55




Page 51

M

Desesibe the staps you intend to take (o promots the four licensing objectives:

) _Genaral -l four licensing ebjectivex (b, ¢, d, o) (planse read guidance nols 10)
“Tha "“"Fk"’ we 15 A vell m-.qligu-] e "*f e botiness za
Loded pueter wll proest g oo e abjeclie i for
a ,a_.ln.x»z..fk aaviisanab .{ﬁ" E‘"“"” N”"‘L‘“ ci‘ "\""’" u'hg"'”‘h

da-.:;.wl rf(\-‘_‘ 'f.falf‘ 'w’lm r....:.-' PEDASTE W

b} The prevention of crima and disorder

(Sl | v [RLR] i'u' j et S l'\?— °k"~¢’*! ste “-l c Lk‘"y = } = “AN ‘“L“

i Rt o ’I"‘;Hﬂ r_._-.manl.qrr?)- z,l.u ilT’f "I'. Cear

rey s

:;--.m” Cil]”“'-'[“'l f‘”""h“"’ ;“rr?l mum’uh “F ,_'u.-:r:.

Vlstt:‘lé’ -u.-_l WALIL’I G Ne F‘h’!‘ g.mﬂn‘l‘-t-*

ﬂ.’:jlfj(m?/.\_l roy E\"E
¥

___d) The prevention of public nuisance
z:i.-t.Ml']'“v‘ U"FCLC‘ iu‘l g-s?l\.%;g.g\ﬁ Cope 0 }a- [ |;1k1~ t’“ﬁ"‘krfji‘&?—‘ﬂﬁ‘é Vs

. 5 . - Y ™~ LA
ey k'.--"'[)'*f- P AT fat ae aly e " ewend e L e

&) The protection of children from harm_ N B
Ff‘[ﬂﬂl'&d 5 I&U-“ o[\?_r‘:-lu‘ v f?iw&ﬁ?ﬁ“ ‘%"Q’ K F\t“ii{ Y i e Il L LTV

P t . ,%s:? dpiliet Cc..* -:I’ 'll R

wheokiist



Page 52

Plasse fick 1o it Wficsly dagregien

* T hawn e ne GiVingad Ryt of the 1, ] r:[

* LhaEge wietaged (e Blan af the Hamnas f?

Y e som NS O fhis pilicishes g e plan 1o Hhpahsitte Butheiteg gy Nhars whingg !j'
apphcably . )

* hiva snclpend |he CONBant m COmplisted Fiy iy Wbt o WISH 1 e designatad Uremjyus EI

“Ophige anpicatip
b Lunnestng ettt nysy g Avertin iy applicaiio
* lundorii v A if | s malaariply wii tho s feuiramenty Y Apnlicstion w b fojRiloy

[
[
f.l".gapﬂ;‘--mru woean ||-1L£§sgrléiffsl Appalie unis, lrqum:u Brssey g gartuumrugl which ig o WAoo lizztyingy
Hirners g, RLTLET r Warils o Ipidtast Haahitey PATNG )
b e ek Horumengy, Vaitiunstrigy W anellimigng 1o SO0 e Uit Hinggom ar my g Misres fg
Sutleissund by fig Mg Oifiss ORlitss Rehe b wark cheking HR0ES (hlegsa faattnote 14)

IT15 AN gF FENCE, UNDER SECTION 155 OF THg LICENSING ACT 2005 1o MAKE A FALsE STATEMEN T
N OR [y COMNEC TGN WITH THis APPLIGnNQN. PHOSE wha MAKE AFALSE § TATEMENTY MAY g
LIABLE on SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE o ANy AMOUNT.

1 1 FING £
SOINTHE KNOw,, EUGE, OR Witn REASONAR) & CAUSE 1o BELIEVE, THAT THE
DISQUAL IF1E

Pajt 4 - Slghatores IPlease raadg Quidance ot 11y

Sloynutre of whpticant or applicant's Solicior gr Othar dufy Mitharised ganl |5gn TNTINCH 2y 12, I
Slgning o Behall of the PRHGENt ploane wHate fiy wivay Lapaaity.
o —— 2 _— —

Deeloratiizn ' Applicabte 1 elivled Al ants Glily iniiy IKing hese i 4 PEHASERID whic v Wk G lrsitan l
litility Parineeshpy)

* lendogpig L sm nat ealitled in b bssuod with & lcanes if | il Ny tlye
sntitissent o flye BN Wi in VE (or it | gen Subioal fo 5 1y ‘o e G
frtson My Wk fefatlng to thy CAMrylg an g1 A liconantiyy AELviY e iy
Iecesiess st ARG iy 1 fease do: iy SOttt b, s s wark (n (i Uk tilang

| ABREEIANCG ro 15}

| = Thy Dps NEied i this appianion immm:-mﬁmd v wenk i e £4C gayjief 1y 1) s

} Skt o ot PIOVERLT ) by ) I frgargy SO Wk felaing 1y o teansalig
Ay a0 | g AN A Copy vl g ot by proGl of Bl 1 weoul, if

| APBIOIIEE (Dleass e noig 15)
P i = —_—— ___r
( Siognatyrn | . '
! ' - = —— — e ]
[ Date I . ) 2
el e LR AT . — —
| Capacity ' /

applicant gr 20 appifcﬂni'u'salfcifor oF uthar althoriseq agent,
Y on beliaj of the appheste ~'ia8e state I whgy Capacity,
———— —

— L} ——— -
For joln apahicallong 2gnatiee of 2~
(Mlosse rguy GG py PR M signg

e

/ Signatuee . oz o !J
Dater M a -3 J
Capacity r' ’

—_ - i

not Meaviougly Hvent ang adurass for ::ormspondnncg assoclated with

1EL read Guidance note 14;

Contag) Name fwivarn
this dppkeation i

S



Page 53

Post town | Post codge

Telephone number (If any}

If you would pm_?%}% s to r,?_ermsss;)—omﬁ with you by a-mait, your e-mait address {ontinnal)

Notes for Guidance

Desuribe the premises, for exampla the type of premises, Its ganeral situaton and layout ar
other Information which could be relevant fo the licensing objectives, Whare vour application
ncludes eff-supplies of alcohol and you interd o provide s place for consumpiion of these off-
supplies. you must include a description of whars the place will be and ils proximity to the
pHrEMISRs

I terme of spedific requiaiad entertginmants please nate that:
e Plays: no licence is required for parformances betwaen 08:00 and 23.00 on any aay, movided
that the andience does noi exceard 500,

= Fifms: nooenee s required for notfer-profit film exhibition held in cammumity premises
between 08,00 and 2000 on any day provitged that the audince doas nol exaeed 500 and
the orgariser (4) gets consent to the screening from 2 persen whao is teaponsible for e
premises; and (b) ansures thai each such screening sbides by agw classification ratings.

» Indoor sporting evenis: no license is required for performances batween 08.00 and 253,
any day, provided that tha audience does not axceed 1000,

»  Boxing or Wrasting Entertalnment. nolicenca is requirgd lora contest, extubilion ur dispiay
ol Grece-Roman wrastling, or reestyle wrestling betwaan 08.00 and 23.00 on any day,
pravidad that the audience does rot excead 1688, Combinad fighting sports — defined as
contest, exiibition or display which vombines boxing ar wrestiing with one or more martial syis
- are licensable a5 a bosting or wrestling enterainment rather than an indoor sporling event,

< Live music na licence permission is required for;

o apedormance of unamplified live music petwsen 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, an any
prEITISes,

v aparformance of ampiified lve music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day oo
oremises authorissd to sall alcoho! for consumption on thases premises. provided that
the audience does nol excend 500
3 performance of amplified live rousic batwaen 0800 and 23,00 on ary day, in a
workplace that is nallicensad © sel alcohot on those premises. provided that the
audience does not exceed 500,
4 performance of amplified tive music betwsen 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in 8
chureh higll, village hah, community hall, or ather sinilar community preeises, thal is
notlicensed by & premisss licenes to sefl alusho!, srovided that () the audinnss does
net exceed 500, and (b) the arganiser gats consant far the performancs from &
parson wha is rasponsitda for the premises,

o apedormance of amplified live music betweeon 02,00 and 23.00 an sny day. &t the
non-resldential pramises of (1) @ focal authority, or (1 a scheol, or (i) & hosoltal.
peovided that fal the audience does not excesd 500, and (b) the organisar gats

—
]




6.

Page 54

consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: () the lacal authorily
concermed, or (i) the school or {ii) the heailh care provider for the hospital.

+ Recorded Music: no lisencs permission is required for

©any playing of recorded music between 08,00 and 23.00 on any dry on pramises.
anthorised 1o sell aloahol for sonsumption on those premises, wrovided ihat the
audience doss not exceed 500,
any playing of recorded music between UB.00 andg 23.00 on any day, in a church hall,
village hall, community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed
by a premises licence to sell atuohol, provided that () the audience daes not exceed
00, ared bt e organiser gois corsent e hn g DO A PRISOn WRE 6
responsibis for lhe pramisss,
any playving of ssdeest music between 08.00 and 23.00 ar any day, al the non-
!es|dam|ai prem«ses of {i} a tocal authority, or (i} a school, or (iif) 8 hospital. provided
thai (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (B) the erganiser gets consent for the
performance on the relevant premises from: (1) the ocal authority concernad, or (n;
the sehcol propegtor or (§1) the health care provider for tha hospital,

Danca: no licence is required for pedfarmances betwsen 08,00 and 23.00 on ary day,
provided that the audience does not excead §00. However, a performanes which amounts
adult entertainmeant remains licensable.

o Cross aclivity exermplions: hao ficence is required bhetween 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, withi
1io firmit on avdience size Tor
oo any enfertainment laking place on the premises of the locai awthority where the
entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the tocal authority;
> any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health care provider
where the entarlainment is provided by or on hehalf of the heaith care prowider;
any erdertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the
entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the school proprietor; and
v any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestiing entertainment) taking
place af a ravelling cirous, provided that (a) it tekas place within @ moveable structure
that accommodates the audience, and () that the travelling ciccus has not besn
located on the same site for more than 28 consecutive days.

o

Wiiere taking place in a building or other struciure please tick as appropriate {indoors may include
& lent),

For example the type of activity o be authorised, If not atready stated, and give relevant futher
details, for axample (but not exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.

For example (but not exciusively}, where the activiiy will ocour on additional days during the
suMMar months.

For exampie (bul not exclusively), whera you wish the aciivily 1o 9o on fonger on a pardicutar day
¢.9. Christrmas Eve.

Piease give tinings in €4 hour cloek {e.g. 18.00) and only give details fur the deys of the week
when you inlend the premises to be used for the activity,

it you wish psople to be able 10 consume aleshal an the premises, please tek ‘on the premises
1 you wish peaple ko be able to purchase alsohol to consume away from the premises, please ok
off the premises’. If you wish people to be abie to do both, pleass tick 'hoth'.

Please give information about anything intended to ocour at the premiges or ancillary 1o ths use of
the pramises which may give rise to concern in respect of children, regerdless of whether you
intend children 1o have access to the premisas, for axample (but not exrlu%ively) audity ar semi-
nudity, films for restricted age geoups or the presence of gaming machines,

. Please list here steps you will take to promoie ait four licensing obiectives togather



Page 55

i e e\"vnq“’“"‘r

poin

Sed A s s
A\

endranc If—"\

. Qree. ichiLicumon
Foll  Lcgpoled
RcTinTIES .
SoLh » Coususafiiier
Of RLCoROL

)T Erirance " e
L

FL‘,]. resden €€

b ol point - .@
. .Room T Fre e&t..\,m@h

Ouviveerd opening

fear hre 0‘\'}

Existing Ground Floor Plan
Scale 1:50



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 57

Annex 2

Home Office — Guidance Issued Under Section 182 of the Licensing
Act 2003

Section 16 Regulated Entertainment

Overview of circumstances in which entertainment activities are not
licensable

16.5

16.6

There are a number of exemptions that mean that a licence (or other
authorisation18) under the 2003 Act is not required. This Guidance cannot give
examples of every eventuality or possible entertainment activity that is not
licensable. However, the following activities are examples of entertainment which
are not licensable:

activities which involve participation as acts of worship in a religious context;
activities in places of public religious worship;

education — teaching students to perform music or to dance;

the demonstration of a product — for example, a guitar — in a music shop;
the rehearsal of a play or performance of music for a private audience where
no charge is made with a view to making a profit;

Morris dancing (or similar)

Incidental music — the performance of live music or the playing of recorded
music if it is incidental to some other activity;

Incidental film — an exhibition of moving pictures if it is incidental to some
other activity;

A spontaneous performance of music, singing or dancing;

Garden fetes — or similar if not being promoted or held for purposes of private
gain;

Films for advertisement, information, education or in museums or art
galleries;

Television or radio broadcasts — as long as the programme is live and
simultaneous;

Vehicles in motion — at a time when the vehicle is not permanently or
temporarily parked,;

Games played in pubs, youth clubs etc. (e.g. pool, darts and table tennis);
Stand-up comedy; and

Provision of entertainment facilities (e.g. dance floors).

As a result of deregulatory changes that have amended the 2003 Act, no licence
is required for the following activities:

Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on
any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on
any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in
community premises between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day provided that the



Page 58

audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the
screening from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures
that each such screening abides by age classification ratings.

Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for an event between 08.00 and
23.00 on any day, provided that those present do not exceed 1000.

Boxing or wrestling entertainment: no licence is required for a contest,
exhibition or display of Greco-Roman wrestling, or freestyle wrestling
between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not
exceed 1000.

Live music: no licence permission is required for:

a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on
any day, on any premises.

a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day on premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those
premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day, in a workplace26 that does not have a licence, provided that the
audience does not exceed 500.

a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day, in a church hall, village hall, community hall, or other similar
community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b)
the organiser gets consent for the performance from a person who is
responsible for the premises.

a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a
school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not
exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on
the relevant premises from: (i) the local authority concerned, or (ii) the
school or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:

any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on
premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those
premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in
a church hall, village hall, community hall, or other similar community
premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell alcohol,
provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the
organiser gets consent for the performance from a person who is
responsible for the premises.

any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at
the non- residential premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or
(i) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500,
and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant
premises from: (i) the local authority concerned, or (ii) the school
proprietor or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on
any day, with no limit on audience size for:

any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority
where the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the local
authority;



16.7

16.8

Page 59

— any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health
care provider where the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of
the health care provider;

— any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where
the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the school proprietor;
and

— any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling
entertainment) taking place at a travelling circus, provided that (a) it
takes place within a moveable structure that accommodates the
audience, and (b) that the travelling circus has not been located on the
same site for more than 28 consecutive days.

The deregulatory changes mean that, for example, an indoor sporting event that
takes place between 07.00 and 23.30 on a particular day is licensable in respect
of activities taking place between 07.00-08.00 and 23.00-23.30. Similarly, where
the audience for a performance of dance fluctuates, those activities are
licensable if, and for so long as, the number of people in the audience exceeds
500. If organisers are uncertain as to audience sizes or if audience migration is
likely, it might be easier and more flexible to secure an appropriate authorisation.
Examples of where a Temporary Event Notice (TEN) could still be required
include if the activity is the playing of recorded music or the exhibition of a film
that requires an authorisation; or if the entertainment is not authorised by an
existing licence or certificate and its conditions.

Of course, anyone involved in the organisation or provision of entertainment
activities — whether or not any such activity is licensable under the 2003 Act —
must comply with any applicable duties that may be imposed by other legislation
relevant to the event (e.g. in areas such as crime and disorder, fire, health and
safety, noise, nuisance and planning). Any such person should take steps to be
aware of relevant best practice, and may find responsible authorities a useful
source of expert support and advice.



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 61

Annex 3
Conditions agreed with North Yorkshire Police

1.The premises shall operate predominantly as a flower shop with a cafe offering and
not as a vertical drinking establishment.

2. A digital colour CCTV system will be installed to cover the premises and recorded
coverage will include all areas to where public have access to consume alcohol.

e It will be maintained, working and recording at all times when the premises are
open.

e The recordings should be of good evidential quality to be produced in Court or
other such hearing.

e Copies of the recordings will be kept available for any Responsible Authority for
28 days. Subject to Data Protection requirements.

e Copies of the recordings shall be made available to any Responsible Authority
within 48 hrs upon request. Subject to Data Protection requirements.

e Copies of the recordings will display the correct time and date of the recording.

It is the responsibility of the management to ensure that there are sufficient members of
staff available during the hours of operation to be able to download evidence from the
CCTV system at the request of the police or responsible authority. Subject to Data
Protection requirements.

3. Documented staff training will be given regarding staff’s obligation under the
Licensing Act in respect of the: -

operation of the CCTV system (including the downloading of evidence)
Retail sale of alcohol

Age verification policy

Conditions attached to the Premises Licence

Permitted Licensable activities

The Licensing objectives and

The Opening Times of the venue.

Such records shall be kept for a minimum of one year and will be made available
immediately upon request from any Responsible Authority.

4. An incident log will be kept at the premises and made available on request to an
authorised officer or the police which will record the following:

all crimes reported to the venue

any complaints received regarding crime and disorder
any incidents of disorder

any faults in the CCTV system



Page 62

« any refusal of sale of alcohol
e any visit by a relevant authority of emergency service

with such records being kept for a minimum of one year. [For the avoidance of doubt,
the one-year period relates to each respective entry in the log book and runs from the
date of that particular entry];

5. On Sales of alcohol shall cease 30 minutes before close of business on any given
day to allow for ‘drinking up’ time.

6. The licence holder will operate a Challenge 25 Age Verification Policy at the
premises.

The only acceptable proof of age identification shall be a current Passport, photo card
Driving Licence, Military ID card, or identification carrying the PASS logo.

7. No open drinks containers shall be taken out of the licensed premises or (licensed
area) onto the pavement or highway.

8. All off sales of alcohol shall be in sealed containers.
9. All Doors and windows shall be kept shut after 21:00 hours daily and during the

playing of amplified music and other entertainment, except for entry to and egress from
the premises.



Page 63

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 65

From:

Sent: 15 June 2023 15:16

To: licensing@york.gov.uk

Subject: Objection to licence application 75 Balmoral Terrace, York, YO23 1HR
Categories:

This email originated from outside of the organisation. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognise
the sender and know the content is safe.

Date: 26/05/2023 Applicant: Sara Winlow and Robert Darbyshire Premises Address: 75 Balmoral Terrace, York,
Y023 1HR Summary: Application for a New Premises Grant: This is a coffee shop and florist with limited seating. The
coffee shop is ancillary to the business with limited seating available. The idea is to offer local residents a relaxed
atmosphere away from more larger pubs and venues Supply of alcohol Monday — Sunday 12:00 ~ 22:30 Opening
Hours Monday - Sunday 08:30 —22:30 End of Representation: 23/06/2023
As a direct neighbour to 75 balmoral terrace | do not wish to have a bar outside my front door.

I believe it is not necessary as a flower shop to sell alcohol for consumption on the premises

It will be noisy and have people stood in the street - smoking etc

It will be horrendous when the races are on ( it is already bad enough !)

The bar faces out onto my front door and | feel it will be potentially intimidating for myself and my children.
There is already a club that sells alcohol across the road and another bar is not needed.

| would not object to a licence for sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises

All the best

" Queen Victoria Street
york
yo231lhw



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 67

45*" CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

<
—
—

Annex 6

Va,

SaE Sholad

Club

| o .

g
Q
=
=
-
=)
m
m
=
A
]

L/

-y,
—

El Sub Sta
© Crown C(i)pyr'ght and clla.tabAase-r-ighIts 2023 Ordnance Survey: 1000208ﬂ8

? |
| L

Date: 21 Jun 2023

Author: City of York Council

0 0.01 0.02 0.03
Scale: 1:500 km




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 69

ANNEX 7

MANDATORY & PROHIBITED CONDITIONS — PREMISES LICENCE
LICENSING ACT 2003

MANDATORY CONDITIONS WHERE LICENCE AUTHORISES SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

1. In accordance with section 19 of the Licensing Act 2003, where a premises licence
authorises the supply of alcohol, the licence must include the following conditions.

2. The first condition is that no supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence -
(@) at a time where there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the
premises licence, or
(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence
or his personal licence is suspended.

3. The second condition is that every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be
made or authorised by a person who holds a personal licence.

4. (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out,
arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following
activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or
supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises —

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or
encourage individuals to —
(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or
supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible
person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or
(i) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);
(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or
discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a
manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;
(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or
reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a
manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;
(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in
the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage
or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any
favourable manner;
(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than
where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).

5. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to
customers where it is reasonably available.

6. (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age
verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of
alcohol.

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that
the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.



Page 70

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18
years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before
being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either —

(a) a holographic mark, or
(b) an ultraviolet feature.

7. The responsible person must ensure that —

(&) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the
premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance
ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the
following measures —

(i) beer or cider: ¥z pint;

(i) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25ml or 35ml; and

(i) still wine in a glass: 125ml;
(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is
available to customers on the premises; and
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol
to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available.

MANDATORY CONDITION: ALCOHOL PRICING

1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off
the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1 —
(a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979(6);
(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula —
P=D+(DxV)
where —
(i) P isthe permitted price,
(i) D is the rate of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were
charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and
(i) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value
added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol,
(c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a
premises licence —
(i) the holder of the premises licence,
(i) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such
a licence;
(d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a
club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a
capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and
(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added
Tax Act 1994(7).

3. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be
taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph
2 on a day (“the first day”) would be different from the permitted price on the next day (“the
second day”) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of
alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second
day.



Page 71
MANDATORY CONDITION: DOOR SUPERVISION

1. In accordance with section 21 of the Licensing Act 2003 (as amended by section 25 Violent
Crime Reduction Act 2006), where a premises licence includes a condition that at specified
times one or more individuals must be at the premises to carry out a security activity, the licence
must include a condition that each such individual must -

(a) be authorised to carry out that activity by a licence granted under the Private Security

Industry Act 2001; or

(b) be entitled to carry out that activity by virtue of section 4 of that Act.

2. But nothing in subsection (1) requires such a condition to be imposed -
(&) in respect of premises within paragraph 8(3)(a) of Schedule 2 to the Private Security
Industry Act 2001 (c.12) (premises with premises licences authorising plays or films), or
(b) in respect of premises in relation to -
(i) any occasion mentioned in paragraph 8(3)(b) or (c) of that Schedule (premises
being used exclusively by club with club premises certificate, under a temporary
event notice authorising plays or films or under a gaming licence, or
(i) any occasion within paragraph 8(3)(d) of that Schedule (occasions prescribed
by regulations under that Act).

3. For the purposes of this section -
(a) "security activity" means an activity to which paragraph 2(1)(a) of that Schedule applies,
and which is licensable conduct for the purposes of that Act (see section 3(2) of that
Act), and
(b) paragraph 8(5) of that Schedule (interpretation of references to an occasion) applies as
it applies in relation to paragraph 8 of that Schedule.

MANDATORY CONDITION: EXHIBITION OF FILMS

1. In accordance with section 20 of the Licensing Act 2003, where a premises licence
authorises the exhibition of films, the licence must include a condition requiring the admission of
children to the exhibition of any film to be restricted in accordance with this section.

2. Where the film classification body is specified in the licence, unless subsection (3)(b) applies,
admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by that
body.

3. Where -
(a) the film classification body is not specified in the licence, or
(b) the relevant licensing authority has notified the holder of the licence that this
subsection applies to the film in question, admission of children must be restricted in
accordance with any recommendation made by that licensing authority.

4. In this section - ‘children' means persons aged under 18; and 'film classification body' means
the person or persons designated as the authority under section 4 of the Video Recordings Act
1984 (c.39) (authority to determine suitability of video works for classification).



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 73

ANNEX 8

Legislation and Policy Considerations

The following provisions of The Licensing Act 2003 apply to this application: S4
general duties of licensing authorities; s17 application for premises licence; s18
determination of application for premises licence; s23 grant or rejection of
application; ss19, 20 and 21 mandatory conditions; The Licensing Act
(Mandatory Licensing Conditions) Order 2010; and The Licensing Act 2003
(Mandatory Conditions) Order 2014.

The following provisions of The Licensing Act 2003 (Premises Licences and
Club Premises Certificates) Regulations 2005 apply to this application:
Regulation 42, Part 2 (Premises licences) and Part 4 (General) relating to
applications, notices and representations and advertisement of applications

The following provisions of the Secretary of State’s guidance apply to this
application:  Section 2 The Licensing Objectives; Section 9 Determining
applications; Section 10 Conditions attached to premises licences and club
certificates; and Section 14 Statements of licensing policy.

The following paragraphs of the licensing authority’s statement of licensing
policy apply to this application: 5.0 Applications for Premises Licences, Club
Premises Certificates and Variations; 6.0 Guidelines for Applicants; 7.0
Saturation and Cumulative Impact and 8.0 Licensing Hours.

The Committee is reminded of their duty under the Crime and Disorder Act
1998 to consider the crime and disorder implications of their decisions and the
authority’s responsibility to co-operate in the reduction of crime and disorder in
the city.

The Committee is reminded that the Human Rights Act 1998 guarantees the
right to a fair hearing for all parties in the determination of their civil rights. The
Act also provides for the protection of property, which may include licences in
existence, and the protection of private and family life.

Amended 24/04/17



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	 
	3 Declarations of Interest
	5 Minutes
	Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 22/06/2023 Licensing/Gambling Hearing
	Minutes


	6 The Determination of a Section 18(3)(a) Application by Sara Winslow and Robert Darbyshire for a Premises Licence  Section 18(3)(a) Application in respect of 75 Balmoral Terrace, York, YO23 1HR (CYC-073025)
	Annex 1 - Application form
	Annex 1 - Plan - 75 Balmoral Terrace
	Annex 2 - Regulated Entertainment Annex
	Annex 3 - Conditions agreed with NYP
	Annex 4 - List of representors - CONFIDENTIAL
	Annex 5 - Representation
	Annex 6 - Map
	Annex 7 - Mandatory conditions
	Annex 8 -  Legislation & Policy


